
Responses to Questions Pertaining to 2018 Request for Solicitation 

 

Drug Testing 

Q. What is expected in UA collection? 
 
A. Please refer to Section C of the Request for Proposal for the mandatory requirements of 

Urine Collection, Instrumented Testing and Reporting (1010).  Training will be provided 
for UA collection.  All drug testing supplies, shipping, and laboratory expenses are paid 
directly by the probation office through other contracts.  Project Code 1010 Urine 
Collection/Testing and Reporting is for the actual collection of the urine sample, 
documentation, and reporting of incidents related to the collection of the sample (e.g. stall, 
tampering, failure to report, etc.). 

Q. Can we utilize our own drug testing lab and bill the probation office for services?  

A. Our office will provide testing supplies and shipping labels.  Samples must be shipped via 
FedEx to the United States Probation Office Drug Lab in New Mexico.  Results are then 
provided to the probation officer and any positive results will be shared with the vendor.  
(NOTE: In unique circumstances, if a client is suspected of drug use and immediate results 
are critical to the integrity of the program, it may be possible for an officer to conduct an 
on-site drug test or to provide the vendor with on-site rapid testing kits.) 

Q. Will the probation office reimburse for confirmation drug testing? 

A. Once a presumptive positive drug test is received from the New Mexico Drug Lab, if the 
client denies drug use, the results are sent to a national drug testing lab for confirmation.   

Q. Does the probation office have scrams available for ongoing alcohol testing? 

A. Yes, the Northern District currently has contracts for Transdermal Alcohol Monitoring 
(TAD) and SoberLink2.  When appropriate, the conditions of supervised release can be 
modified to include alcohol monitoring. 

Treatment 

Q. Is there reimbursement for case management, assessments, treatment plans, 
treatment plan updates, education and employment groups, and parenting 
education? 

A. This question pertains to 1085-18-10SA.  Intensive Outpatient Counseling (2080) requires 
a minimum of three hours of counseling, individual or group, per day.  The unit price is 
calculated per day of service.  If the structure of your program includes the services 
mentioned above as part of the intensive outpatient counseling the “reimbursement” should 
be factored into the daily unit price.   

 



 Treatment plans, treatment plan updates, and discharge summaries are required by the 
Statement of Work (Section C).  The unit price should take into consideration the time 
required to complete the required documentation noted in Section C of the Statement of 
Work. 

 To broaden the scope of this question, outpatient substance abuse and mental health 
agreements normally include a project code for assessments.  These assessments are 
requested, and paid for individually, when the need for services has not been clearly 
determined and a recommendation is needed.  However, in many cases an individual is 
referred directly to treatment based on a clear need for services.  In these cases assessment 
cannot be billed separately.  If assessments are completed by the vendor in all cases this 
should be considered and reflected in the unit cost for counseling as would the treatment 
plans and discharge summaries.   

Q. Is the IOP (2080) counseling billed as a bundle?  Can we bill more than one hour of 
counseling a month? 

A. IOP is required to be a minimum of three hours per day.  The unit price for IOP (2080) is 
billed per day.  The number of days can be adjusted throughout the treatment program (e.g. 
the program may start at five days per week and reduce over time to three days per week).  
Over time, treatment can reduce to standard outpatient treatment (2010 or 2020) which is 
billed per 30-minute unit and can be adjusted to provide the recommended treatment (e.g. 
Two units would equate to one hour of treatment). 

Q. Will federal probation officers transport to other counties if immediate inpatient 
treatment is needed? 

A. The probation office will refer clients to residential substance abuse treatment when 
deemed appropriate and will transport when necessary.  Residential substance abuse 
treatment for offenders under supervision is primarily provided through vendors currently 
awarded a Blanket Purchase Agreement (BPA) with the Northern District of Oklahoma. 

Q. Can the probation office pay for residential or inpatient treatment if an offender is 
needing higher levels of care. 

A. Yes, the Northern District of Oklahoma does have Blanket Purchase Agreements (BPAs) 
with residential treatment facilities and will make referrals for treatment when determined 
appropriate. 

Q. Is there reimbursement for medication assisted treatments? 

A. No, medication assisted treatments are not reimbursed. 

 

 

 



Q. Can the treatment provider resume treatment for services if offender does not meet 
program criteria? 

A. If an offender does not meet the criteria to participate in the program the treatment provider 
is not obligated to accept the offender. If the situation changes, the treatment provider could 
then resume treatment.  

Q. Is there a maximum limitation to length of treatment? 

A. While there are limitations on short-term and long-term residential treatment, exceptions 
can be made in unique circumstances.  There are no maximum limitations to the length of 
outpatient services, to include intensive outpatient treatment; however, the client needs and 
progress should be reevaluated every 90 days to assess the need for continued services.   

Transportation 

Q. Is there any funding available for transportation outside of a bus pass when offenders 
need to be accompanied to appointments? How is transportation reimbursed. 

A. Residential programs include Contractor’s Local Travel by Vehicle (1401) for which 
mileage is reimbursed at the prevailing rate established by the Judiciary Travel Regulations 
for employees of the Judicial Branch of the Government.  A U.S. Probation and Pretrial 
Services Travel Log (Prob 17 included in Section J of the RFP) must be submitted with 
billing for reimbursement. 

Non-Residential programs often include Defendant/Offender Transportation (1202) which 
allows the vendor to provide the client with a monthly bus pass which is reimbursed by the 
probation office.  Each bus pass authorized and provided to an offender will be reimbursed 
at cost with the monthly billing. 

Each of these options include an administrative fee which is a reasonable monthly fee to 
administer transportation expense funds, not exceeding five percent of the monthly funds 
distributed. 

Billing 

Q. Can billing be submitted electronically?  

A. Yes, the probation office has an electronic billing system. 

Q. Is there reimbursement for medical co-payments? 

A. No, the probation office does not reimburse medical expenses. 

 

 

 

 



Additional Questions 
 
Q. What is the anticipated start date that the United States Probation and Pretrial 

Services Office (“Probation Office”) expects to begin sending defendants/offenders to 
the vendor for treatment? 

A. Blanket Purchase Orders awarded will take effect October 1, 2017.  Referrals can be made 
on this date or any time thereafter based on need. 

Q. How do the estimated monthly quantities apply to the specific services 
requested?  Does the estimated 20 units per month for 2018 mean that the vendor 
would collect 20 total specimens per month?   Alternatively, does it mean that the 
vendor would collect an unknown number of specimens from 20 different 
defendants/offenders per month?  

A. Unit price is specified under the Estimated Monthly Quantity in Section B.  For example, 
Urine Collection/Testing and Reporting (1010) is a unit price per specimen while Long-
Term Residential Treatment (2002) is a unit price per day.  The Statement of Work found 
in Section C will provide specifics on the mandatory requirements for each required 
service.  

 The Estimated Monthly Quantity noted in Section B is the estimated total quantity of units 
per service during a given month.  For example, the 20 units for 1010 referenced in the 
question would be a total of 20 samples collected during the month.  In another example, 
Long-Term Residential Treatment (2002) in 1085-18-07SA estimates 60 units per month 
which would be a total of 60 days billed, or two clients in long-term treatment billed 30 
days each per month.   

 NOTE: Quantities listed are only estimates and not guaranteed.  

Q. How does the Probation Office define a “subcontractor”?  Mental health facilities 
frequently engage doctors, registered dieticians, and other specialty providers as 1099 
independent contractors, as opposed to W-2 employees, of the facility.  Nevertheless, 
the mental health facility considers these individuals be part of its workforce.    Would 
those individuals need to be identified as “subcontractors” in the RFP response? 

A. Please refer to section I.2 Subcontracting.  Services that the vendor proposes to refer to 
other service providers shall be considered subcontracting.  This pertains specifically to 
services required in the RFP and provided to federal clients under the agreement.  For 
example, if a counselor is self-employed and contracted through your agency, they would 
be considered a sub-contractor.      

Q. Would a vendor be eligible for the program if it is actively pursuing certification by 
the Oklahoma Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse (“ODMHSAS”) 
to provide substance abuse treatment services in a residential treatment facility, as 
long as it receives the certification on or before the anticipated start date?    

 

 



A. The vendor must have all required certifications at the time the proposal is submitted or 
will be rated technically unacceptable.  If there is not a technically acceptable proposal 
submitted by the submission deadline, the probation office can request permission to enter 
discussion with a technically unacceptable vendor in an attempt to allow the vendor to 
provide additional information and clarify proposal requirements. 

Q. In the instructions on page L-2 (1085-18-09SA) it states, “Offeror must check or 
complete…Section K of the Solicitation Document and resubmit the full section as 
that of the Proposal.” However, on page L-4 is states, “Sections K, L, and M contain 
information and instructions and do not become part of any resultant agreement.” 
Additionally, nowhere does it state if section J, List of Attachments, is to be included 
with the package or not.   

A. Section K does contain information and instructions and must be completed and submitted 
with the proposal to provide required information related to the vendor.  This section is not 
part of any resultant agreement (e.g. outline requirements of the agreement).  Section J is 
for information purposes only and is not required to be submitted with the proposal; 
however, these forms will be needed for the vendors awarded the agreement. 

 


